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Clarification Note #4  

EUSPA internal reference: 263467 
 

Procurement procedure: GSA/OP/24/20   

 

Question #42: In the section 3.2.7.1 General principles (of subcontracting) you allow the possibility 

of not having a subcontractor at all (“Where no sub-contracting is indicated in the tender the work 

will be assumed to be carried out directly by the tenderer”.). 

However, in the very next paragraph (3.2.7.2), you contradict this by stating that the contractor 

must subcontract at least 20% of the share.  

So what are we to go by? A. We don't have to have any subcontractors? Or B. We have to 

subcontract at least 20%? 

 
Answer #42: According to the section 3.2.7.2 of the Tender Specifications, the tenderer is requested 
to subcontract a share of the contract to companies outside the tenderer’s group. The paragraph 
under section 3.2.7.1 does not contradict to the aforementioned statement, as there might be the 
cases where no competitive tendering is planned to be undertaken (such shall be subject to the 
submission of justification providing compelling reasoning by the tenderer, as per the 3.2.7.2 of the 
Tender Specifications).  
 

Question #43: (Mandatory) subcontractors shall be selected outside the tenderer’s group of 

companies. Does this mean that companies from our group are prohibited from participating in 

competitive tendering? If not: under what conditions they can apply? If yes: what if they could offer 

the best terms and the lowest price (and we can prove it)? 

 
Answer #43: According to the section 3.2.7.2 of the Tender Specifications and in line with Article 26 
(2) GNSS Regulation (available here: https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-
content/EN/TXT/?uri=celex:32013R1285) the tenderer is requested to subcontract a share of the 
contract to companies outside the tenderer’s group. In this context, competitive tendering is 
considered to be the situation where offers only from entities other than those belonging to the 
tenderer’s group have been requested by the tenderer. The expression Group is meant to encompass 
i) the entity or the group of entities acting as a tenderer, ii) the entity /entities to which the tenderer 
or any of the members of the Group acting as tenderer is affiliated, iii) the entities affiliated to the 
tenderer or to any of the members of the group acting as tenderer. An entity shall be deemed affiliated 
to the tenderer or any of the members of the group acting as tenderer if their links fall within the 
scope of Article 22 of Directive 2013/34/EU of 26 June 2013. 
 

https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/?uri=celex:32013R1285
https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/?uri=celex:32013R1285
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In view of the above, competitive tendering is considered when an entity outside the tenderer’s group 
of companies has been requested by the tenderer, regardless of what the entities belonging to the 
tenderer’s group could offer. 

 

Question #44: What exactly do you mean by the term "tenderer's group of companies"? 100% 

ownership or maybe even lower? 

 
Answer #44: Please refer to Q&A n. 43 above.  
 
 
Question #45: For Scenarios 1 and 2 of Lot 3, can you please clarify whether the technical 
development of the revamped/redesigned website is also part of the tenderer’s 
tasks/responsibilities requested under each Scenario? Or is this a task that your internal web 
development team will handle? 
 
Answer #45: Lot 3, scenario 1, 2, 3 tenderers are requested to provide a mock-up of the requested 
items, they are not requested to do “technical development” (e.g. coding) but a graphic mock-up of 
the new interface. 

 
Question #46: As part of Scenario 4 for Lot 3, you request full-time, on-site support (Prague) from a 
junior social media manager and a junior webmaster, for a period of 6 months. Could you please 
clarify whether the junior social media manager will be tasked with the implementation of the 3-
month social media campaign that is planned as part of this scenario? And could you please clarify 
whether the junior webmaster will be tasked with some of the data and content upload tasks that 
are planned as part of this scenario? Or are tenderers to assume that both profiles are not involved 
in any of the other tasked described in Scenario 4?     
 
 
Answer #46: The scenario 4 covers both the on-site support for the social media manager (‘’Full time, 
on-site support (Prague) of a junior social media manager for 6 months’’) and the support at the 
contractor’s premises (‘’Developing and implementing a social media campaign strategy and plan for 
a 3 month-long campaign to promote a large international event (only organic traffic, no paid advert) 
including 3 posts per week across different media, 3 web-stories’’). 

 
Question #47: Section 3.1.2.3 of the tender specifications shows several profiles for Lot 3. The 
roles and responsibilities of these profiles are not clearly defined. Are tenderers free to make their 
own assumptions as to their respective role in each of the Scenarios?   
 
 
Answer #47: The profiles are standard profiles for any company delivering the services described in 
Lot 3. Their role and responsibility will be based on the tasks assigned and defined but the project 
manager. 
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Question #48: Under title 2.3.10, on p. 21 of the tender specifications, the Agency lists that – upon 
request – the contractor shall 

“b) Buy subscriptions on behalf of the GSA to platforms for managing social media, online 
marketing activities and GSA newsletter” 
Under title 3.1.6.3.4, on p. 36, relating to Scenario 4 on social media, it reads the 
contractor shall provide “only organic traffic, no paid advert”. 

-Do we understand correctly that no sponsored/paid social media strategy is to be 
provided in the technical offer, although it might be requested in the implementation 
phase? 

-Or should we understand, on the contrary, that the exclusion of a sponsored/paid 
social media strategy only strictly relates to the “large international event” mentioned 
under title 3.1.6.3.4? 

 
Answer #48: Subscriptions are reimbursables. Under title 3.1.6.3.4, on p. 36, yes, the tenderer shall 
include in the offer “only organic traffic, no paid advert”. Please note that the simulation exercises are 
indicative (see section 3.1.5 of the tender specifications) and other tasks within the scope of each lot, 
such as the paid advert for LOT 3, might be requested during the contract performance. 
 
 
Question #49: Under title 2.3.10, on p. 21 of the tender specifications, the tender reads that the 
technical offer – among others – is to include “an example of a written interview”. 

-Do we understand correctly that you expect a written one-on-one type interview, in a 
Question & Answer format? 
-And, do we understand correctly that the fact these samples should illustrate the 
organisation’s “technical capacity” is to ensure the organisation’s use of the right template 
(e.g. in order for it to easily be uploaded online)? 

 
Answer #49: An interview is not a Q&A. EUSPA expects an example of an interview done by the 
tenderer to assess its capacity to deliver on some of the content-related tasks mentioned in the tender 
specifications. The focus should be on producing relevant and compelling content that serve user 
needs, and profile speakers and organisation. 
 
 
Question #50: Tender Specifications, point 3.1.6.2.1 Scenario 1 – amongst others we shall provide 
storyboards. We would understand such requirement in case of TV adv or movie. But in case of the 
conference promoting video it is not common. Please confirm this requirement.  
 
Answer #51: In this scenario, the EUSPA is assessing the visual storytelling creativity/input of the 
tenderer and not the video as such. Therefore, the tenderer is required to provide a storyboard. 
 
 
Question #52: Tender Specifications, point 3.1.6.2.1 Scenario 1 – the conference suggested has no 
topic. Could you advise us one or more the most common? May we make up our own? It will help 
us to be more specific. 
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Answer #52: For ideas tenderers may consult EUSPA’s YouTube channel 
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=euspaceweek   

 
Question #53: In the section 2.1.1 (point b) of the Tender Specifications document, it is mentioned 
that the contractor will be responsible for „creating, producing, and presenting both textual and 
visual content“. However, we do not find a corresponding personnel position (such as a copywriter 
or a content developer) required in the Contractor’s personnel section. Thus, we are not sure 
whether the contractor should incorporate development of textual content in technical offer, for 
example in Scenario 1 – Design and layout of a segment brochure. Could you, please, clarify whether 
you wish us to develop new textual content in the brochure proposal or the Scenario pertains to the 
graphic/visual content, solely? 
 
Answer #53: Tenderers LOT 1 / Scenario 1 are expected to provide the design and layout, updating of 
the content layout, content/page distribution and overall graphics. Content development should be 
understood to be in the scope of LOT 3.  
 
 
Question #54: With reference to the submission of ANNEX I.C Power of Attorney, given the current 
circumstances related to COVID-19 pandemic, would it be sufficient to provide separate copies, each 
one signed by a member of the consortium? 
 
Answer #54: Yes, to the extent that the power of attorney is signed by a duly authorised 
representative of the entity granting it.  
 
 
Question #55: We have a follow up question to your Answer #7: If a subcontractor is identified in 
the Core Team (as defined in section 3.2.6), can that subcontractor's work be counted towards the 
mandatory subcontracting 20%? In other words, can the Core Team consist of the Lead Tenderer 
plus the 20% Subcontractor(s)? The distinction with the original question #7 is that no consortium is 
being formed to bid in this case. 

Answer #55: For the 20% of the mandatory subcontracting, tenderers should fulfil the provisions of 
section 3.2.7.2, according to which the tenderer shall select the subcontractors through the 
competitive tendering.  

 

Question #56: In relation to the Lot 2 FWC Unit Prices and the line item "On-site Junior motion 
graphics designer/animation/post production editor (c)", can you provide an estimate for how 
many days of work are anticipated on-site? 

Answer #56: 2-3 days a week. 

 

https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=euspaceweek
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Question #57: Can you indicate how many days of on-site work have been contracted in recent years 
for the role equivalent to the Lot 2 FWC Unit Price line item "On-site Junior motion graphics 
designer/animation/post production editor (c)"? 

Answer #57: Please note that there is no such information available. Please further refer to Q&A n. 
56.  

 

Question #58: How should the cost of equipment rental (such as camera equipment) be included in 
the Lot 2 FWC Unit Prices as the line items appear to only cover people and not equipment? 

Answer #58: Equipment rental should be part of the reimbursable expenses. 

 

Question #59: On page 30/31, Annex I - Tender Specifications, Case 3, Scenario 3, provision of 
graphic and creative services support for six months. 

Do we understand correctly that you "only" want the methodology and approach but no graphic 
examples for this scenario? 
 
Answer #59: The graphic and creative services support for six months is part of scenario 4 NOT 3. For 
scenario 4, we only need what is listed under “Tenders shall” paragraph and not the graphic examples. 

Question #60: As part of the preparation of the offer, we are also preparing a detailed description 
of the functioning of our team, the division of roles and the rules of internal and external 
communication. For this, we need to know at least basic information about how the cooperation 
will work from the GSA/EUSPA side: what will the implementation team (in charge of the project 
look like)? What will be the division of roles? Who will be in charge of what and who will approve 
the different phases of the project? How will communication be set up? 

 
Answer #60: At the beginning of each year there will be a meeting between the Communication 
department and the tenderer to plan major milestones, initiatives and deliverables etc requiring 
graphic support. Each graphic project will be initiated by one of the EUSPA communications officer, 
and the iteration will be between the tenderer and the communication officer, EUSPA 
communications officer will be in charge for internal circulation and feedback, and the final approval.  
It is to the tenderer to suggest optimal ways of working to streamline processes 

 

Question #61: Can our expert(s) / Project Manager attend GSA/EUSPA Communications Unit 
meetings? 

 
Answer #61:  We envisage a bimonthly catch up meeting with the tenderer to plan and monitor 
deliverables; experts from the tenderer team will be invited to any other meeting deemed necessary 
for the execution of the tasks. 
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Question #62: Will our team have access to any updates on GSA/EUSPA activities that could have 
communications implications? 

 
Answer #62: The tenderer will receive regular updates that may impact the delivery of their tasks. 

 

Question #63: Our team will certainly be able and ready to report on performance as well as provide 
strategic advice on visibility and impact improving. Such an important and sensitive collaboration 
should have clear rules given in advance: will you agree to organize regular meetings “at the highest 
level” between Head of GSA/EUSPA Communication Unit and our Communications Director + 
Project Manager of the implementation team? 

 
Answer #63: Yes, we envisage regular meetings at different levels, both at the strategic and 
operational level. 

 

Question #64: Cooperation with other external suppliers in the field of communication: will we 
cooperate directly or through the GSA/EUSPA? 

 
Answer #64: For broader tasks involving different suppliers EUSPA will coordinate activities, and call 
for joint meetings when needed. 

 
Question #65: In the tender document GSA/OP/12/14 Annex I, in the section 3.1.5 Simulation 

exercise it is mentioned that: 

“Due to the nature of Contracting Authorities activities and their evolving character, the Simulation 

Exercises are indicative and will be used mainly for evaluation purposes. Nevertheless, should at the 

time of placing a specific contract the assumptions, terms and conditions according to which a 

scenario has been developed not be subject to changes, the Tenderer’s offer for the scenario shall 

be considered binding and enforceable.” 

 Please clarify under which circumstances scenarios would be binding, as it is unclear how the 

assumptions, terms and conditions could be the same as those which prevailed at the time of 

submission. 
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Answer #65: It is not possible to foresee if and to what extent at time of issuing of a specific contract 
the circumstances assumed in a given scenario will be changed. This judgment can only be made on a 
case by case basis, in light of the specific future circumstances, at the time of specific contract issuing. 

 

 
 

-End of document- 


